
 

 
 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 

 
 
Date Thursday 4 November 2021 

Time 1.30 pm 

Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham 

 
Business 

 
Part A 

 
Items which are open to the Press and Public 

 
 
1. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair of County Durham SACRE   

2. Introductions, Welcome and Apologies   

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2021  (Pages 5 - 10) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any   

5. Matters Arising   

6. Chairs Comments   

7. SACRE Membership   

8. Feedback from the Agreed Syllabus   

9. Additional Support Materials   

10. Education Durham Report to SACRE  (Pages 11 - 12) 

11. Regional/National Updates   

12. Interfaith Week   

13. A Personal View   

14. Date of the Next Meeting   

15. Any other business   

16. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information   

 
 
 

Helen Lynch 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 



County Hall 
Durham 
27 October 2021 
 
 
To: The Members of the Standing Advisory Council on 

Religious Education 
 

1. Church of England  
 

 Canon L Burton, N Dodd, K Passmore, H Tait and C Weir 
 

2. Other Religious Denominations and Faiths 
 
 S Baker - Roman Catholic 
 A Barron - Roman Catholic 
 Revd R Fisher - Methodist Church 
 W Gray - Buddhism 
 F Johnson - Methodist Church 
 J Nicholls - Society of Friends (Quaker) 
 Bhakti Rasa Dasa - Hinduism 
 C Singh - Sikhism 
 C Spencer - Bahá’í Faith 
 M Turner - Islam 
 D Van der Velde - Judaism 
 
3. Teachers Associations 
 
 V Bain - NEU 
 B Dunn - RE Curriculum Group 
 A Hartley - NASUWT 
 M Lowden - NEU 
 S Lupton - RE Curriculum Group 
 P Welch - NEU 
 
4. County Council Representatives 

 
 Councillors D Haney, S Townsend, C Varty and M Walton 
 
5. Co-opted Members 
  
 M Dixon  
 S Walker - Humanist 
 
 
 Specialist Inspector 

 
 Julie Rimmer 
 

Contact: Lucy Gladders Tel: 03000 269712 



 

1 
 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

At a Meeting of Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
(SACRE) held in Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham on Thursday 17 
June 2021 at 1.30 pm 

 
 

Present: 
 

P Welch (Chair) In the Chair 

 

 
 

 Church of England 
 Canon L Burton and H Tait  

 
 

 Other Religious Denominations and Faiths 
 S Baker - Roman Catholic 
 W Gray - Buddhism 
 M Turner - Islam 

 
 Teachers Associations 
 B Dunn - RE Curriculum Group 

 
 County Council Representatives 
 Councillors D Haney and M Walton 
  
 Co-opted Member: 
 S Walker  - Humanist 
   
 Education Durham Support and Provision Lead 
 J Rimmer 

 
  

 

1 Introductions, Welcome and Apologies  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked Members to 
introduce themselves. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from V Bain, J Bainbridge, M Dixon, N 
Dodd, A Hartley, FA Johnson, M Lowden, S Lupton, J Nicholls, J Pallister, C 
Spencer, D Van der Velde, C Weir and Councillors S Townsend and C Varty. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

2 Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record and were signed by the Chair. 
 
The Chair referred to the minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2020 and 
read out the following statement: 
 
“Following the discussion at the meeting held on 4 March 2021, I have 
sought advice from the Head of Legal Services about the minutes of the 
meeting held on 5 March 2020. I have been advised that in accordance with 
SACRE’s Constitution, we should not have been asked to endorse the 
Humanist Guidance as this is not SACREs role under the Constitution, we 
should have been asked to “note” the report. 
 
In view of that clarification, members were asked to now confirm the Minutes 
of the meeting held on 5 March 2020 are approved as a correct record and 
the minutes of the meeting today would note this point of clarification. 
 
He had extended an invitation to the representative of legal services to 
attend the November meeting, to remind Members of our responsibilities set 
out in the Education Act 1996 and confirmed in SACRE’s Constitution.” 
 
Members referred to page 3 of the minutes and asked that C Spencer be 
included as part of the SACRE planning team. 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record, subject to the inclusion of C Spencer as a member of the SACRE 
planning team and were signed by the Chair. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to the items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

4 Matters Arising  
 
There were no matters arising. 
 

5 Chairs Comments  
 
The Chair advised Members that he had received correspondence from a 
Member of SACRE in relation to how the Durham Agreed Syllabus had been 
received. 
 

Page 4



3 
 

Concerns had been received from one primary school who had indicated that 
they were having some difficulties designing a curriculum from the Local 
Agreed Syllabus and they had found the previous version more useful.  
 
The Chair indicated that nothing had changed substantially from the previous 
version of the agreed syllabus, and that they had only strengthened and 
added to the 2020 Local Agreed Syllabus. 
 
He had consulted with Education Durham on the matter and provided a 
response to the Member that they believed that the Durham Agreed Syllabus 
was a rigorous document to promote age-appropriate Religious Education. 
They recognised that some colleagues may need support with the Durham 
Agreed Syllabus and had made that offer available through Education 
Durham, for any schools who required support. 
 
The Chair then paid tribute to teachers and support staff in schools in 
particularly secondary schools for the work they had carried out for GCSE 
and A Level teacher assessment grades. He also paid tribute to students for 
all their hard work during the difficult period in education caused by the global 
pandemic. 
 
He also advised Members that a planning meeting had been held prior to the 
SACRE meeting that had been helpful and would be the driving force behind 
SACRE, in terms of setting the agenda for meetings and focusing the work of 
SACRE. The Chair would like to continue with these meetings. 
 

6 SACRE Membership  
 
Members were advised that the membership of Durham SACRE was for a 
four-year period that would expire on 31 August 2021. The Clerk would be 
writing to faith groups for their nominations. 
 

The Chair asked that the order of the agenda be amended so that the 
next item to be considered was the Education Durham Report to 

SACRE 
 

7 Education Durham Report to SACRE  
 
Members considered the Education Durham Report to SACRE that provided 
details of the Education Durham Support to Schools in 2020-2021 to date. 
The report also advised Members that Darlington Borough Council had 
approached the Council in relation to adopting the Durham Agreed Syllabus 
for Religious Education (for copy of report, see file of minutes).  
 
The Education Durham Support and Provisional Lead Officer presented the 
report. 

Page 5



4 
 

 
Canon L Burton asked if Members of SACRE could also be kept up to date 
regarding regional and national updates. The Education Durham Support and 
Provisional Lead Officer responded that she would be happy to share this 
information and would have a conversation with the Chair outside the 
meeting on a suitable way to share this information with SACRE Members. 
 
In response to a question about support for RE teachers in Durham LA, H 
Tait advised Members that she would be attending the RE network meetings 
and could present her notes to SACRE. 
 
W Gray referred to the e-book Resource pack that supported the Durham 
Agreed Syllabus and as discussed at the last meeting, asked if SACRE 
Members could also have access to this resource. 
 
The Education Durham Support and Provisional Lead Officer responded that 
at the last SACRE meeting it was agreed that she would share selective 
information and she would make sure that this was carried out. 
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 

8 Additional Guidance for Humanism  

 
The Chair gave a brief explanation around the additional guidance for 
Humanism and that SACRE were not able to endorse the guidance and 
should have only noted the report at the meeting held in March 2020. 
 
S Walker indicated that at the March 2020 SACRE meeting a couple of 
amendments were suggested for the document and the correct version of the 
document was contained on the North East Humanist website. 
 
She then advised Members that it was herself who brought the document to 
Durham SACRE and advised that other authorities had endorsed the 
document. She was happy to withdraw the request to endorse the document 
given that SACRE can’t endorse documents. The document had been used 
and they had received a lot of positive feedback from secondary and primary 
teachers and Humanists had been using the resources themselves when 
they went into schools. 
 
In response to a statement from S Walker regarding comments against 
Humanists, the Chair indicated that SACRE was an inclusive and diverse 
space with people from all religions and non-religious world views. Members 
were reminded that they needed to give thought and consideration to words 
very carefully and he was committed to this as Chair of SACRE. 
 

Page 6



5 
 

W Gray indicated that she was pleased that the position on the endorsement 
of the Humanist guidance document had been clarified. She suggested that 
they formally thank the North East Humanist society for proposing the 
document. She also suggested that SACRE investigate the possibility of the 
Durham SACRE Agreed Syllabus 2020 being revised early to incorporate a 
specific section on non-religious world views, that currently was not 
contained withing within the agreed syllabus. 
 
The Chair referred to the early revision of the Durham Agreed Syllabus and 
indicated that he would take legal advice on this to ascertain if legislation 
would allow this. 
 
The Chair then formally thanked the North East Humanist Society for the 
guidance document on behalf of Durham SACRE. 
 
In response to a question as to why SACRE could not endorse the document 
the Chair advised Members that a legal colleague would attend the 
November meeting, and this could be discussed at that meeting, but the 
advice he was given was that the document could be noted but not 
endorsed. 
 
Members briefly discussed additional support materials for teachers on non-
religious world views. The Chair indicated that this was to be considered 
under Agenda Item No.10. 
 

The Chair advised Members that the meeting was no longer quorate, 
and the meeting would be adjourned. The remaining business would be 

considered at the next SACRE meeting 
 

9 Report from NASACRE AGM  
 
Consideration of this item would be considered at the next SACE meeting. 
 

10 Additional Support Materials for Teachers  
 
Consideration of this item would be considered at the next SACE meeting. 
 

11 Date of the next meeting  
 
The date of the next SACRE meeting was to be determined. 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Education Durham: Report to Durham SACRE November 2021 

Durham Revised Agreed Syllabus for RE 2020.  

An approach was made by Darlington Local Authority to adopt the 2020 Revised Durham 

Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education. This is being considered by Darlington SACRE.  

Education Durham Support to Schools in 2020-2021 to date 

Education Durham have continued to provide termly network meeting for primary and 

secondary leaders and teachers of Religious Education from Durham and beyond, for 

schools that buy a School Support Service Level Agreement. The network meetings are also 

available at a cost to other leaders and teachers. Both the primary and secondary networks 

have their own Education Durham MS Teams channel where teachers can post questions 

and information can be shared outside of the network meetings. The networks are facilitated 

by Catherine Robson, an externally procured Religious Education Adviser through the 

Durham County Council Education Durham Provider Panel 2021 – 2025.  

Education Durham have continued their membership of NATRE and RE Today to support 

the delivery of networks and to be able to signpost supportive materials to schools.  

In addition, Education Durham are providing network support and SACRE to Hartlepool Local 

Authority and networks to South Tyneside Local Authority.  

Subject Leader Network foci for 2021-22 Autumn term  

Secondary 12th October 2021  

 Ofsted subject review: implications for classroom practice, staff development and 

improvement planning 

 Review of 2021 outcomes – discussion on attainment and progress  

 Impact of decisions regarding 2022 exam series  

 National and local updates  

 Needs analysis 

 

Primary 18th November 2021 

The focus of the network is on building subject confidence around teaching Islam in the RE 

classroom and is in response to the Ofsted subject review in religious education considered 

at the Summer Term network. Imran Kotwal from Muslim Learner Services will be presenting 

and all Y6 teachers are invited to attend this section of the network. This will support 

teachers to deliver the unit of learning about Islam within the agreed syllabus and the use of 

the exemplar planning materials.  

Personal Development 7th October 2021 

A new secondary personal development network has been established for 2021-2022 which 

is designed to bring together leaders in school who have a focus on personal development. 

This reflects the position of personal development as a separate judgement in the current 

Ofsted Inspection framework. Advisers with specialisms which support this element of 

education are contributors to this network. This includes Religious Education and Social, 

Spiritual, Moral, Social, and Cultural and development.  

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 10



 
 

 

In school support for Religious Education - April to October 2021 

Since April there have been 11 individuals RE support contracts generated to support 

primary (5), secondary (2), and special schools (4) through the Education Durham School 

Support Service Level Agreement. This amounted to 50 hours of support. The requested 

support has been focussed on new and existing leadership of Religious Education, reviewing 

provision and curriculum planning.  

Support to SACRE members  

NASACRE membership has been continued for 2021-2022.  

The 2021-2022 NASACRE SACRE members training programme consisting of 9 webinars 

has been purchased by Education Durham and made available to all SACRE members. 

Members have been provided with details of how to access the training. Some members 

have already taken advantage of this training, including training for new SACRE members 

and the new SACRE reporting template. The next virtual training session is what do 

SACREs need to know and understand about worldviews and takes place on 10th November 

at 7pm.  

 

 

 

 

Page 10


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2021
	10 Education Durham Report to SACRE

